
 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

 

 
1040 County Road 4, Saint Cloud, MN 56303-0643 

T. 320.252.7568 F. 320.252.6557 

AGENDA 

APO POLICY BOARD MEETING 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2023 - 4:30 P.M.  

GREAT RIVER REGIONAL LIBRARY, BREMER ROOM 
1300 W ST GERMAIN ST, ST CLOUD, MN 56301 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Introductions 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Public Comment Period 

5. Approve Consent Agenda Items (Attachments A – E) 
a. Approve Minutes of October 12, 2023 Policy Board Meeting (Attachment A) 
b. Approve Bills Lists (Attachments B1 – B3) 
c. Receive Staff Report on October 26, 2023 Meeting of the Technical Advisory 

Committee (Attachment C) 
d. Receive Staff Report on October 5 Meeting of the Area Transportation Partnership 

(Attachment D) 
e. Receive 3rd Quarter Budget-to-Actual Report (Attachment E) 

6. Consider FY 2028 Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) Projects (Attachment 
F1 – F3) Vicki Johnson, Senior Transportation Planner 
a. Suggested Action: Approve 2028 HSIP Projects 

7. Consider Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Goals, Objectives, Strategies, and 
Performance Measures (Attachments G1 & G2), Vicki Johnson, Senior Transportation 
Planner 
a. Suggested Action: Approve MTP Goals, Objectives, Strategies, and 

Performance Measures 

8. Debrief Washington, DC Trip (Attachment H), Jared Gapinski, Benton County 
Commissioner & Joe Perske, Stearns County Commissioner 
a. Suggested Action: None, Informational Only 

9. Hear Information Regarding Local Safe Routes to School Planning (Attachment I), Alex 
McKenzie, Associate Planner 
a. Suggested Action: None, Informational Only 

10. Other Business & Announcements 

11. Adjournment 

 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

English 

The Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization (APO) fully complies with the Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Executive 
Order 12898, Executive Order 13116 and related statutes and regulations. The APO is 
accessible to all persons of all abilities. A person who requires a modification or 
accommodation, auxiliary aids, translation services, interpreter services, etc., in order to 
participate in a public meeting, including receiving this agenda and/or attachments in an 
alternative format, or language please contact the APO at 320-252-7568 or at 
admin@stcloudapo.org at least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting. 

Somali 
Ururka Qorsheynta Deegaanka ee Cloud Cloud (APO) wuxuu si buuxda u waafaqsanahay 
Cinwaanka VI ee Xuquuqda Xuquuqda Rayidka ee 1964, Cinwaanka II ee Sharciga Naafada 
Mareykanka ee 1990, Amarka Fulinta 12898, Amarka Fulinta 13116 iyo qawaaniinta iyo 
qawaaniinta la xiriira. APO waa u furan tahay dhammaan dadka awooda oo dhan. Qofka u 
baahan dib-u-habeyn ama dejin, caawimaad gargaar ah, adeegyo turjumaad, adeegyo 
turjubaan, iwm, si uu uga qeyb galo kulan dadweyne, oo ay ku jiraan helitaanka  
ajendahaan iyo / ama ku lifaaqan qaab kale, ama luqadda fadlan la xiriir APO. 320-252- 
7568 ama at admin@stcloudapo.org ugu yaraan toddobo (7) maalmood kahor kulanka. 

Spanish 
La Organización de Planificación del Área de Saint Cloud (APO en inglés) cumple 
plenamente con el Título VI de la Ley de Derechos Civiles de 1964, con el Título II de la 
Ley sobre los Estadounidenses con Discapacidad de 1990), de la Orden Ejecutiva 12898, 
de la Orden Ejecutiva 13116 y los estatutos y reglamentos relacionados. La APO es 
accesible para todas las personas de todas las capacidades. Una persona que requiere una 
modificación o acomodación, ayudas auxiliares, servicios de traducción, servicios de 
interpretación, etc., para poder participar en una reunión pública, incluyendo recibir esta 
agenda y/o archivos adjuntos en un formato o idioma alternativo, por favor, contacta a la 
APO al número de teléfono 320-252-7568 o al admin@stcloudapo.org al menos siete (7) 
días antes de la reunión. 

 
 

 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org
mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org
mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org
mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


Attachment A 
 

1 
 

SAINT CLOUD AREA PLANNING ORGANIZATION POLICY BOARD 
Thursday, October 12, 2023 – 4:30 PM 
 
A regular meeting of the Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization Policy Board was 
held on Thursday, October 12, 2023, at 4:30 PM APO Chair Raeanne Danielowski 
presided with the following members: 
 
 Raeanne Danielowski  County of Sherburne 

Jared Gapinski   County of Benton 
Jeff Westerlund    Town of LeSauk 

 Mayor Dave Kleis   City of St. Cloud 
 Joe Perske    Stearns County 

Mayor Rick Schultz   City of St. Joseph 
Mike Kedrowski   Metro Bus 
Jake Anderson   City of Saint Cloud    

 Dottie Seamans   City of Sauk Rapids 
 Frank Theisen   City of Waite Park 

Also in attendance were: 
 Brian Gibson    Saint Cloud APO  
 Vicki Johnson   Saint Cloud APO 
 Alex McKenzie   Saint Cloud APO 
 James Stapfer   Saint Cloud APO 

Trina Ness    Saint Cloud APO 
Tom Cruikshank   MnDOT 
Steve Voss    MnDOT 
 

Absent: 
 Mayor Rick Miller   City of Waite Park 
 Jeff Goerger    City of St. Cloud 
 Tim Elness    City of Sartell 
  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Mayor Kleis motioned to approve the agenda and Mayor Schultz seconded 
the motion. Motion carried.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD:  No members of the public were in attendance. 
However, Mr. Gibson brought forth an email he received from John Pedersen 
regarding support for Agenda Item #1, which is to consider directing US-10 dollars 
to the Sherburne County CR-61 project. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:  

a. Approve Minutes of September 14, 2023, Policy Board Meeting 
b. Approve Bills Lists 
c. Receive Report regarding the September 28, 2023, meeting of the  

 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 



Attachment A 
 

2 
 

Ms. Seamans motioned to approve the consent agenda items and Mr. Theisen 
seconded the motion. Motion carried.  
 
Consider Directing US-10 Dollars to Sherburne County CR-61 Project  
Mr. Cruikshank and Mr. Voss from MnDOT presented MnDOT’s position reminding the 
Policy Board that the state legislature provided $1,000,000 in 2021 to MnDOT to do 
two things: 1) to complete a planning study of the US-10 corridor between Saint 
Cloud and Clear Lake, and 2) to begin implementing recommendations from that 
plan. The legislature stipulated that the Policy Board be able to direct how the 
implementation of funds were to be expended.  
 
Mr. Voss stated that the intent of the money was to help fund the study of the 
corridor. MnDOT had non-state road construction funds to put toward the study. The 
study was completed last month. MnDOT covered the entire cost of the study. MnDOT 
would like to run a cost analysis of the project and if it comes in a little higher, MnDOT 
has local partnership funds they can transfer to this project, therefore they have 
upwards of $2,000,000 to put toward the CR-61/US-10 project. The preliminary 
design and plans should be available in a couple of weeks.  
 
Mr. Cruikshank stated it’s very difficult to do spot improvements in specific areas. He 
questioned as to what kind of systematic improvements can be made. Currently 
MnDOT is working with Sherburne County, City of St. Cloud, and the APO to realize 
a J-Turn project to realign CR 65 and 45th Avenue and combine the two intersections 
that cross the railroad into one. Burlington-Northern is in full agreement with this 
project. After that, Sherburne County will be realigning the intersection of CR-61 at 
US-10 and installing a J-turn. Currently MnDOT is in a preservation mode not an 
expansion mode. 
 
Mayor Kleis asked, timing wise relative to the US-10/MN-23 interchange 
reconstruction, when will the J-turn project be done? Mr. Cruikshank and Mr. Voss 
responded with the J-Turn project is next summer (2024) The US-10/MN-23 
reconstruction should be completed by the time the next US-10 project would begin. 
The primary flow of traffic should be restored by early next summer (2024). 
Preliminary engineering study will be kicking off in 2024 and going on concurrently 
with the current construction plans according to Mr. Voss and Mr. Cruikshank.  
 
Mr. Perske said he wanted to be mindful about the river crossing. We’ve spent so 
much time realizing that project. He asked if we have at least two spots that are 
feasible for the 33rd Street interchange at US-10? Mr. Cruikshank responded that the 
river crossing has been taken into consideration and somewhere between CR 65 and 
CR 3 along US-10 would be reserved for the river crossing. 
 
Ms. Danielowski stated speaking for the traveling public, it is very dangerous and 
especially difficult for the truck drivers to get out onto US-10 as they don’t fit in the 
median area, and they take chances because it is difficult for them to get out onto 
US-10. She’s very happy to see that there’s some proactiveness going on and would 
think MnDOT would be excited as this is beyond preservation and maintenance. 
 



Attachment A 
 

3 
 

Mr. Cruikshank stated that we are going to see a substantial increase in heavy truck 
traffic as there are several aggregate companies opening pits along US-10 and will 
be needing access. The faster we can get these improvements completed will make 
US-10 safer. In the meantime, we have these immediate safety issues that need to 
be addressed. 
 
Mayor Kleis motioned to approve Directing US-10 Dollars to the Sherburne 
CR-61 Project and Mr. Gapinski seconded the motion. Motion carried.  
 
 
Consider Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Project Lists 
Ms. Johnson presented the project lists that have been approved by the Technical 
Advisory Committee (TAC). Once projects are in the long-range plan, they become 
eligible for federal funding.  
 
The projects do not need to be done in the specific order stated in the MTP. 
Jurisdictions can do the projects when they have the money to do them, as long as 
they have been included in the long-range plan.  
Mayor Kleis asked about models for emissions, and if the current model takes into 
consideration the government’s goal of being all electric by 2050. To which Ms. 
Johnson responded, no, it does not. The emissions modeling assumes the current 
vehicle fleet. We’d primarily be focusing on improving travel delays. 
 
Mayor Kleis motioned to approve the MTP Project List and Ms. Seamans 
seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 
 
Consider 2024 PM1 Safety Performance Targets 
Mr. Stapfer presented the PM1 Safety Targets, which need to be reviewed annually. 
We are looking at the 2023 project data to set targets for 2024. 
 
If the APO doesn’t meet its safety goals, there are no financial or additional penalties. 
If MnDOT doesn’t reach its safety goals they have to work at improving safety. 2022 
Safety Goals were set using 2020 data (due to COVID). Mr. Gibson made the point 
that even though the rates of serious injuries and fatalities are relatively flat, it is 
actually good news because there are more people living in the area and people are 
traveling more now than a few years ago. 
 
Mayor Kleis asked if there was data on how many crashes there were.  Mr. Stapfer 
responded yes. We review the DPS information and track accidents and MnDOT looks 
at the cost of crashes. Mr. Anderson stated that there are more vehicles on the road 
with driver assistance, and safety features on the vehicles have improved. All 
concurred that hopefully serious injury and fatality crashes will continue to diminish. 
 
Mayor Kleis asked if there are more crashes, just not serious injury or fatality? Mr. 
Stapfer responded that only property damage data is decreasing from 2022 and 
beyond. While officers are still filling out ICR’s, they are not submitting property 
damage only incidents to the DPS. Mr. Stapfer is hoping to have the data from DPS 



Attachment A 
 

4 
 

and MnDOT for the TPMR by next spring (2024). Ms. Johnson stated that she will 
send the study and data from 2021 to the APO Policy Board. 
 
Mr. Gapinski motioned to approve the 2024 PM1 Safety Targets and Mayor 
Schultz seconded. Motion carried. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS & ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
Mr. Gibson stated that there will be a Policy Board meeting on the 9th of November 
2023. He explained that the November meeting is necessary for the APO to select 
Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) projects and submit them to the state. 
Therefore, we need a meeting in November.  
 
Mr. Westerlund stated that is during deer hunting season and asked if it could be 
postponed until the following week. Many responded that the following week is 
Coalition of Greater Minnesota Cities (CGMC). Mr. Westerlund stated he would have 
his alternate attend. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Schultz motion to adjourn the meeting and Mr. 
Theisen seconded the motion. Motion carried.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:30 PM. 



Date Transaction Type Num Posting Memo/Description Account Amount

Abdo Financial Solutions

10/09/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50017 Yes August Invoice 1002 Liberty Checking account 4,642.16 

10/13/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50025 Yes September and October Invoices 1002 Liberty Checking account 9,284.32 

Brian Gibson Exp Reimb

10/13/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50026 Yes Voided - Reimbursement paid through payroll 1002 Liberty Checking account 0.00 

City of St. Cloud - Water/Sewer

10/09/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50016 Yes Bimonthly bill payment 1002 Liberty Checking account 271.54 

El-Jay Mechanical

10/12/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50022 Yes Toilet repair 1002 Liberty Checking account 230.50 

Loffler Companies

10/12/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50024 Yes August through October Invoices 1002 Liberty Checking account 250.13 

Metro Sales Inc

10/12/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50023 Yes September Invoice 1002 Liberty Checking account 1,078.15 

10/26/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50028 Yes October Invoice 1002 Liberty Checking account 1,078.15 

Premium Waters, Inc.

10/09/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50018 Yes August Water 1002 Liberty Checking account 27.98 

Quill.com

10/09/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50005 Yes 1002 Liberty Checking account 127.13 

10/23/2023 Bill Payment (Credit Card) 1 Yes 6683173 VISA 2733 315.33 

Spectrum Business (Charter)

10/17/2023 Bill Payment (Credit Card) 1 Yes Phone and Internet August-October VISA 2733 853.82 

St. Cloud Area Chamber of Commerce

10/09/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50014 Yes Membership Dues 1002 Liberty Checking account 540.00 

St. Cloud Stamp & Sign, Inc

10/05/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50001 Yes Office Supplies 1002 Liberty Checking account 203.06 

SC Times

10/9/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50013 Yes Printing and Publishing 1002 Liberty Checking account 199.05 

Streetlight Data Inc

10/26/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50032 Yes Streetlight Subscription 1002 Liberty Checking account 6,365.00 

The MN Transportation Alliance Inc

10/09/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50015 Yes Membership Dues 1002 Liberty Checking account 445.00 

Transportation Collaborative & Consultants LLC

10/12/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50020 Yes July and August Invoices 1002 Liberty Checking account 31,765.21 

10/26/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50030 Yes September Invoice 1002 Liberty Checking account 20,545.69 

Trina Ness (Expense Reimbursement

10/09/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50019 Yes Reimbursement for postage paid 1002 Liberty Checking account 5.10 

Weisman Cleaning Inc

10/09/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50006 Yes Cleaning Services September 1002 Liberty Checking account 140.00 

10/09/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50004 Yes Cleaning Services August 1002 Liberty Checking account 140.00 

West Central Sanitation, Inc

10/12/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 50021 Yes September Invoice 1002 Liberty Checking account 51.01 

Total October Disbursements: 78,558.33$    

ST. CLOUD AREA PLANNING ORGANIZATION
Actual Disbursements

October 2023

Attachment B1



Method Of
 Payment To Whom Paid What Check is for Account  Amount

Direct Dep. Net Payroll  (including insurance reimbursement) 11/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 10,533.16$         
Electronic Expense Reimbursemt - Employee mileage 11/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll -$  
Electronic Social Security, Medicare & Federal Tax PAID 11/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 4,744.75$           
Electronic MN Department of Revenue-Withholding PAID 11/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 1,534.75$           
Electronic PERA 11/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 2,107.30$           
Electronic Great West Annuity 11/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 10.00$  
Electronic Minnesota State Retirement System 11/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 150.52$              
Electronic Select Account (H.S.A.) 11/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 423.34$              

Direct Dep. Net Payroll  (including insurance reimbursement) 11/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 10,533.16$         
Electronic Expense Reimbursemt - Employee mileage 11/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll -$  
Electronic Social Security, Medicare & Federal Tax PAID 11/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 4,744.75$           
Electronic MN Department of Revenue-Withholding PAID 11/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 1,534.75$           
Electronic PERA 11/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 2,107.30$           
Electronic Great West Annuity 11/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 10.00$  
Electronic Minnesota State Retirement System 11/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 150.52$              
Electronic Select Account (H.S.A.) 11/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 423.34$              

Credit Card Adobe Creative Cloud - November 2023 Subscription service to PDF software IT Support & Software 131.49$              
Check KLJ Engineering CPG Passthrough Expense CPG Passthrough Expenses 8,746.26$           
Check AFLAC - November 2023 Employee Addtl Insurance Payroll 735.38$              
Check Alex Mckenzie mileage reimbmt - November estimate Mileage Reimbursement Travel  200.00$              

Electronic BCBS of MN - November 2023 Employee Health Insurance Payroll 4,024.08$           
Check City of St Cloud - Water/Sewer - November 2023 Utilities - water / sewer Utilities 50.00$  
Check Cloudnet - November 2023 Internet Service Utilities 10.00$  
Check David Turch & Associates- November 2023 Lobbyist Services Lobbying 4,000.00$           
Check Delta Dental - November 2023 Employee dental insurance Payroll 236.65$              
Check ESRI Inc IT Support - ArcGIS Desktop Basic Single User IT Support & Software 1,106.10$           

Credit Card Google Inc - estimate - November 2023 G Suite Basic - Commitment Utilities 48.00$  
Check Transportation Collaborative & Consultants - November Estimate CPG Passthrough Expense CPG Passthrough Expenses 31,765.21$         
Check Loffler Companies - estimate - November 2023 Copier Supplies Copy Machine 137.19$              

Credit Card Mailchimp.com - estimate - November 2023 Monthly IT Support IT Support & Software 20.00$  
Check Metro Sales Inc - November 2023 Monthly IT Support IT Support & Software 1,079.00$           
Check Premium Water Inc - estimate - November 2023 Office Drinking Water Utilities 65.00$  
Check Principal Financial - November 2023 Emloyee disability insurance Payroll 272.00$              

Credit Card Quill.com November 2023 Office Supplies Office Supplies 137.12$              
Check Spectrum Business (Charter) - November 2023 Internet Service Utilities 420.00$              

Electronic Stearns Electric Association - November 2023 Utilities - electric Utilities 203.96$              
Electronic Eco-Counter Inc Equipment & Hardware Utilities 203.96$              

Credit Card SC Times - estimate - estimate - November 2023 Public Postings Printing/Publishing 199.05$              
Check The MN Transportation Alliance Inc Membership Dues Dues & Subscriptions 90.00$  
Check Vicki Johnson Mileage Reimbursement Travel  68.50$  
Check Weisman Cleaning Inc - estimate - November 2023 Office Cleaning Services Maintenance 150.00$              
Check West Central Sanitation Inc - estimate - November 2023 Utility - garbage Utilities 55.00$  

Electronic Xcel Energy - estimate - November 2023 Utilities - gas Utilities 485.00$              
Check Abdo Financial Solutions Accounting services - November 2023 Accounting Services 4,642.16$           

TOTAL 98,288.75$         

Proposed November Disbursements
Prepared 11/1/2023

Attachment B2



Method Of
 Payment To Whom Paid What Check is for Account  Amount

Direct Dep. Net Payroll  (including insurance reimbursement) 12/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 10,533.16$         
Electronic Expense Reimbursemt - Employee mileage 12/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll -$  
Electronic Social Security, Medicare & Federal Tax PAID 12/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 4,744.75$           
Electronic MN Department of Revenue-Withholding PAID 12/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 1,534.75$           
Electronic PERA 12/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 2,107.30$           
Electronic Great West Annuity 12/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 10.00$  
Electronic Minnesota State Retirement System 12/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 150.52$              
Electronic Select Account (H.S.A.) 12/5/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 423.34$              

Direct Dep. Net Payroll  (including insurance reimbursement) 12/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 10,533.16$         
Electronic Expense Reimbursemt - Employee mileage 12/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll -$  
Electronic Social Security, Medicare & Federal Tax PAID 12/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 4,744.75$           
Electronic MN Department of Revenue-Withholding PAID 12/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 1,534.75$           
Electronic PERA 12/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 2,107.30$           
Electronic Great West Annuity 12/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 10.00$  
Electronic Minnesota State Retirement System 12/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 150.52$              
Electronic Select Account (H.S.A.) 12/20/2023 Payroll Paid Payroll 423.34$              

Credit Card Adobe Creative Cloud - December 2023 Subscription service to PDF software IT Support & Software 131.49$              
Check AFLAC - December 2023 Employee Addtl Insurance Payroll 735.38$              
Check Alex Mckenzie mileage reimbmt - December estimate Mileage Reimbursement Travel  200.00$              

Electronic BCBS of MN - December 2023 Employee Health Insurance Payroll 4,024.08$           
Check City of St Cloud - Water/Sewer - December 2023 Utilities - water / sewer Utilities 50.00$  
Check Cloudnet - December 2023 Internet Service Utilities 10.00$  
Check David Turch & Associates- December 2023 Lobbyist Services Lobbying 4,000.00$           
Check Delta Dental - December 2023 Employee dental insurance Payroll 236.65$              
Check ESRI Inc IT Support - ArcGIS Desktop Basic Single User IT Support & Software 1,106.10$           

Credit Card Google Inc - estimate - December 2023 G Suite Basic - Commitment Utilities 48.00$  
Check Transportation Collaborative & Consultants - December Estimate CPG Passthrough Expense CPG Passthrough Expenses 31,765.21$         
Check Loffler Companies - estimate - December 2023 Copier Supplies Copy Machine 137.19$              

Credit Card Mailchimp.com - estimate - December 2023 Monthly IT Support IT Support & Software 20.00$  
Check Metro Sales Inc - December 2023 Monthly IT Support IT Support & Software 1,079.00$           
Check Premium Water Inc - estimate - December 2023 Office Drinking Water Utilities 65.00$  
Check Principal Financial - December 2023 Emloyee disability insurance Payroll 272.00$              

Credit Card Quill.com December 2023 Office Supplies Office Supplies 137.12$              
Check Spectrum Business (Charter) - December 2023 Internet Service Utilities 420.00$              

Electronic Stearns Electric Association - December 2023 Utilities - electric Utilities 203.96$              
Electronic Eco-Counter Inc Equipment & Hardware Utilities 203.96$              

Credit Card SC Times - estimate - estimate - December 2023 Public Postings Printing/Publishing 199.05$              
Check The MN Transportation Alliance Inc Membership Dues Dues & Subscriptions 90.00$  
Check Vicki Johnson Mileage Reimbursement Travel  68.50$  
Check Weisman Cleaning Inc - estimate - December 2023 Office Cleaning Services Maintenance 150.00$              
Check West Central Sanitation Inc - estimate - December 2023 Utility - garbage Utilities 55.00$  

Electronic Xcel Energy - estimate - December 2023 Utilities - gas Utilities 485.00$              
Check Abdo Financial Solutions Accounting services - December 2023 Accounting Services 4,642.16$           

TOTAL 89,542.49$         

Proposed December Disbursements
Prepared 11/2/2023

Attachment B3



Attachment C 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

 

 

 
1040 County Road 4, Saint Cloud, MN 56303-0643 

T. 320.252.7568 F. 320.252.6557 

 

TO:   Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization Policy Board 
FROM:  Vicki Johnson, Senior Transportation Planner 
RE:   Staff Report on the Oct. 26, 2023, Technical Advisory Committee meeting 
DATE:  Oct. 30, 2023 
 

The Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization’s (APO’s) Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
held a regular meeting on Thursday, Oct. 26, 2023. At that meeting, the following topics 
were discussed: 

1. Capital Asset Management Software Presentation 

a. Chris DeJuneas and William Winslow from Brightly Software conducted a 
presentation/demonstration of their asset management software. This 
program would allow member jurisdictions to input pavement condition data 
into the software and will help predict when a corridor would need 
preservation treatments to help preserve pavement quality. APO Executive 
Director Brian Gibson stated the APO has been floating the idea of securing a 
pavement asset management system for years and thought the one 
presented by Brightly would be an affordable option to consider. After the 
presentation, TAC representatives had a conversation regarding the proposed 
purchase of this and the capabilities this software would have. No action on 
this item was taken.  

2. Consideration of the FY 2028 Highway Safety Improvement Program Projects 

a. APO Senior Transportation Planner Vicki Johnson provided an overview of the 
Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP). During this solicitation, she 
stated the APO received one application – for transverse rumble strips from 
Sherburne County. This proactive project would take place at several 
intersections countywide, but in the APO’s planning area it would impact the 
following intersections: 

i. CSAH 3 and CSAH 7/CR 65. 

ii. CR 62 and CSAH 20. 

iii. CSAH 3 and CSAH 20. 

iv. CR 61 and CSAH 20. 

v. CSAH 16 and CSAH 20. 

b. APO TAC representatives recommended Policy Board approval of this 
proactive project to continue with the application process. 

3. Consideration of the Looking Ahead 2050 Goals, Objectives, Strategies, and 
Performance Measures 

a. Ms. Johnson presented the draft Goals, Objectives, Strategies, and 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


Attachment C 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

Performance Measures chapter for the 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan 
(MTP). She stated the chapter’s (and ultimately the full plan’s) consistency 
with both the national and state goals for surface transportation. She 
provided a summary of the chapter’s components based upon the six 
visioning themes approved by the APO’s Policy Board. TAC representatives 
recommended Policy Board approval of the chapter. 

Suggested Action: None, informational only. 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


Attachment D 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

 

 

 
1040 County Road 4, Saint Cloud, MN 56303-0643 

T. 320.252.7568 F. 320.252.6557 

 

TO:   Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization Policy Board 
FROM:  Vicki Johnson, Senior Transportation Planner 
RE:  Staff Report on Oct. 5, 2023, Central Minnesota Area Transportation 

Partnership ATP-3 meeting 
DATE:  Oct. 6, 2023 
 

The Central Minnesota Area Transportation Partnership (ATP-3) met in Baxter on Thursday, 
Oct. 5, 2023. At that meeting, the following topics were discussed: 

1. Local Program Update 

a. MnDOT District 3 State-Aid Engineer Angie Tomovic provided an update on 
the locally funded projects (Surface Transportation Block Grant, 
Transportation Alternatives, Highway Safety Improvement Program) within 
District 3. She stated there are a good number of projects that are moving 
along. She said she has no concerns about projects at this point in time. 

b. Ms. Tomovic provided an update on the Local Partnership Program. She said 
the LPP solicitation will be kicking off in October. She estimates there will be 
approximately $1.7 million for FY 2028 plus some additional funding that was 
unspent in previous years. This could mean the LPP solicitation could be up to 
approximately $3.9 million across MnDOT District 3. Ms. Tomovic said the 
solicitation period will close in January with project selection in March and 
ATP-3 approval slated for April 2024. 

c. Ms. Tomovic also indicated the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 
solicitation is currently open. She stated there is approximately $4.7 million 
available in HSIP funds for FY 2028. Applications are due by Nov. 22. The 
state’s selection committee will meet in December and January with project 
awards being announced in February 2024. 

2. ATP-3 FY 2025-2028 STIP Development Timeline 

a. MnDOT District 3 Planning Director Steve Voss detailed a few changes to the 
2025-2028 STIP Development Timeline. These changes include the new date 
for when the full application phase for the TA solicitation will begin – that 
new date being Nov. 24, 2023. He stated the District is still waiting guidance 
on the Carbon Reduction Program (CRP) and the Promoting Resilient 
Operations for Transformative, Efficient, and Cost-Saving Transportation 
(PROTECT) solicitations.  

3. Recommended ATP-3 Transportation Alternatives (TA) Program Policy, Application, 
and Scoring Changes 

a. Mr. Voss discussed the work the TA scoring committee and the ATIP 
development committee conducted regarding the Transportation Alternatives 
program. This work included raising the minimum technical score to be 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


Attachment D 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

considered eligible to receive TA funds from the District from 60 points to 65 
points. In addition, Mr. Voss said the committees were recommending clearer 
guidance on the distribution of equity points. The committee requested the 
following: “To bring the ATP’s award of equity points in alignment with 
current inequity deficit of 4% or more, which would allow a region to receive 
four points when their inequity deficit hits 4%. The equity deficit would need 
to reach the next highest percentage without rounding to receive additional 
points.” The committee also recommended that once an application was 
formally submitted that no changes should be made to the application. 
Applicants should instead rely on their respective regional planners to assist 
in making their application as competitive as possible. The two committees 
also recommended several changes to the District’s TA application – including 
the clarification of equity/environmental justice, adding in two resources for 
applicants to use regarding equity, and adding equity information to the 
historical properties and scenic byways/environmental applications. Finally, 
Mr. Voss stated the committees recommended several changes to the ATP-
3’s Operations and Policy Manual regarding the proposed 
changes/clarifications to the TA program. 

b. Members of the ATP-3 voted: 

i. To approve the raising of the minimum technical score from 60 to 65 
points. 

ii. To approve the clarification surrounding equity point distribution. 

iii. To approve the changes made to the TA applications and scoring 
sheets. 

iv. To approve the changes made to the ATP-3’s Operations and Policy 
Manual. 

4. FYs 2024/2025 Promoting Resilient Operations for Transformative, Efficient, and 
Cost-Saving Transportation (PROTECT) Local Candidate Project Recommendations 

a. MnDOT District 3’s Engineering Specialist/Program Coordinator Jeff Lenz 
presented on the three projects the ATP-3 received as part of the PROTECT 
Solicitation. Those projects included: 

i. The City of Baxter’s proposed improvements along MN 371 between 
Excelsior Road and Woida Road. This project would include significant 
stormwater upgrades to increase the size and number of drainage 
structures. The City was requesting $625,000 in ATP-3 PROTECT 
funds. 

ii. The City of Monticello’s proposed improvements to Wright County 
Ditch 33. This project would repair the failing section of ditch 
infrastructure north of I-94 to make this area more resilient to 
flooding and other extreme weather events. The City was requesting 
$1.2 million in ATP-3 PROTECT funds. 

iii. The City of Princeton’s proposed compact roundabout construction at 
the intersection of CSAH 31/First Street and CSAH 39/21st Avenue. 
The City was requesting $480,000 in ATP-3 PROTECT funds. 

b. Members of the ATP-3 voted: 

i. To approve the City of Baxter’s PROTECT fund request contingent on 
the City continuing to work with MnDOT on the project scope. 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


Attachment D 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

ii. To table the City of Monticello’s PROTECT fund request. This project 
will need additional information and coordination with the city and 
county staff. 

iii. To eliminate the City of Princeton’s PROTECT fund request from 
consideration due to it not meeting the program’s criteria. 

5. FY 2028 ATP-3 Managed Program Federal Funding Project Solicitation 

a. Mr. Lenz presented the application guidance, application, and templated 
scoring guidance for the FY 2028 Surface Transportation Block Grant 
Program (STBGP) solicitation. No changes were made to the guidance, 
application, or recommended scoring template. Members of the ATP-3 voted 
to approve the solicitation. Ms. Tomovic will be working with regional 
representatives to develop a more formal award letter for successful 
applicants to be placed in the project file at the district. 

6. FY 2028 ATP-3 Transportation Alternatives Program Project Solicitation Kick Off 

a. Mr. Lenz provided an overview of the FY 2028 ATP-3 Transportation 
Alternatives Program solicitation. He stated workshops on the program will 
be provided at 1:30 p.m. on Oct. 5 in Baxter (after the ATP-3 meeting) as 
well as at 1:30 p.m. on Oct. 10 at the Saint Cloud MnDOT office. An overview 
of the program’s solicitation timeline was provided as well as materials 
related to the Letter of Intent and the state’s TA guidance. Members of the 
ATP-3 voted to approve the solicitation. 

7. MnDOT’s Interpretation of Minnesota’s Open Meeting Law Requirements on ATPs 

a. Mr. Voss provided a follow-up to an inquiry from the June meeting regarding 
Open Meeting Laws. He stated that in reaching out to MnDOT senior 
leadership as well as MnDOT’s legal counsel, it was determined that the ATPs 
do not need to abide by the state’s Open Meeting Laws. This is because the 
ATPs are not considered a decision-making body – they are strictly an 
advisory body to the state’s Commissioner of Transportation. 

Suggested Action: None, informational only. 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


ST. CLOUD AREA PLANNING ORGANIZATION
Budget vs. Actuals: Budget Year 2023 - FY23 P&L 
January - September 2023

Actual Budget Total Budget Remaining % of Budget

Income

   4000 Assessments 0.00  0.00  -   

      4001 General Operations 96,980.98  96,981.00  0.02 100%

      4108 Local Match Reimbursement 0.00  0.00  -   

         4108.05 Travel Demand Model Support 11,700.02  11,700.00 (0.02) 100%

         4108.15 Hard-to-Reach Liaisons 1,000.00  1,000.00  - 100%

         4108.20 Stearns Co CSAH 1 Study 50,000.00  50,000.00  - 100%

      Total 4108 Local Match Reimbursement $           62,700.02  $ 62,700.00  (0.02) 100%

   Total 4000 Assessments $         159,681.00  $ 159,681.00  - 100%

   4103 MnDOT 0.00  0.00  -

      4103.01 MN DOT Grant 31,411.64  62,815.00  31,403.36 50%

   Total 4103 MnDOT $           31,411.64  $ 62,815.00  31,403.36 50%

   4105 Consolidated Planning Grant 205,708.45  695,880.00  490,171.55 30%

   4107 CPG Revenue - Contractors 89,133.73  0.00  (89,133.73)

   4900 Interest 3,948.37  2,000.00 (1,948.37) 197%

CPG and Interest $         298,790.55  $ 697,880.00  399,089.45 43%

Total Income $         489,883.19  $ 920,376.00  430,492.81 53%

Expenses

   6560A Wages and Benefits

      6560 Payroll Expenses 267,503.03  537,000.00  269,496.97 50%

      6565 Payroll Tax Expense 19,168.88  0.00  (19,168.88)

      6600 Employee Benefits

         6600.1 PERA 13,196.86  0.00  (13,196.86)

         6600.10 Employment Services 1,132.40  0.00  (1,132.40)

         6600.5 Health/Dental/Life Insurance 51,422.05  0.00  (51,422.05)

         6600.6 HSA Account 2,600.04  0.00  (2,600.04)

      Total 6600 Employee Benefits $           68,351.35  $ 0.00    (68,351.35)

   Total 6560A Wages and Benefits $         355,023.26  $ 537,000.00  181,976.74 66%

   6571 Employee Recruitment Costs 1,139.44  0.00  (1,139.44)

   6601 Office Supplies 804.77  1,500.00  695.23 54%

   6602 Accounting Services 23,661.48  38,000.00  14,338.52 62%

   6603 Communications 0.00  7,000.00  7,000.00 

      6603.1 Telephone 2,059.66  0.00  (2,059.66)

      6603.2 Postage 106.45  0.00  (106.45)

      6603.3 Internet 2,204.74  0.00  (2,204.74)

   Total 6603 Communications $             4,370.85  $ 7,000.00  2,629.15 62%

   6604 Travel 1,388.01  3,500.00  2,111.99 40%

   6605 Printing & Publishing 1,619.10  2,000.00  380.90 81%

   6606 Utilities and Maintenance 9,585.64  13,000.00  3,414.36 74%

   6607 Legal Services 0.00  1,500.00  1,500.00 0%

   6608 Multifunction Copier 841.15  2,000.00  1,158.85 42%

   6609 IT Support & Software 19,320.81  29,500.00  10,179.19 65%

   6609.1 Equipment & Hardware 3,037.56  3,000.00 (37.56) 101%

   6610 Dues & Subscriptions 2,334.08  4,000.00  1,665.92 58%

   6611 Miscellaneous Expenses 0.00  7,500.00  7,500.00 0%

   6615 Insurance - Office 4,990.68  5,750.00  759.32 87%

      6615.01 Workers Compensation 555.93  0.00  (555.93)

   Total 6615 Insurance - Office $             5,546.61  $ 5,750.00       203.39 96%

   6618 Professional Development 1,722.00  1,500.00 (222.00) 115%

   6622 CPG Passthrough Expense

      6622.20 MTP Support & Assistance 47,748.05  58,500.00  10,751.95 82%

      6622.29 Hard-to-Reach Liaisons 5,150.00  5,000.00 (150.00) 103%

      6622.31 Stearns CSAH 1 Corridor 118,286.89  200,000.00  81,713.11 59%

   Total 6622 CPG Passthrough Expense $         171,184.94  $ 263,500.00   92,315.06 65%

Total Expenses $         601,579.70  $ 920,250.00  318,670.30 65%

Net Operating Income -$       111,696.51  $ 126.00  111,822.51 -88648%

Other Income -   

   5001 Washington Lobbyist Assessment 48,000.00  48,000.00  - 100%

Total Other Income $           48,000.00  $ 48,000.00  - 100%

Other Expenses -   

   902 Ineligible Fed Reimbursemt 0.00  0.00  -   

      902.1 Travel - Air Meals Etc 1,255.60  5,000.00  3,744.40 25%

      902.10 Washington Lobbyist 28,000.00  48,000.00  20,000.00 58%

      902.3 Subscriptions 730.00  0.00  (730.00)

      902.4 Bank Foreign Transaction Fees 3.83  0.00  (3.83)

      902.6 Late Fees and Other Charges 53.65  0.00  

   Total 902 Ineligible Fed Reimbursemt $           30,043.08  $ 53,000.00       22,956.92 57%

   903 Audit Fees 11,015.00  14,000.00  2,985.00 79%

Total Other Expenses $           41,058.08  $ 67,000.00  25,941.92 61%

$             6,941.92  -$ 19,000.00  (25,941.92) -37%

Net Income -$       111,696.51  -$ 18,874.00  92,822.51 592%

Year to Date Total

Attachment E



Attachment F1 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

 

 

 
1040 County Road 4, Saint Cloud, MN 56303-0643 

T. 320.252.7568 F. 320.252.6557 

 

TO:   Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization Policy Board 
FROM:  Vicki Johnson, Senior Transportation Planner 
RE:  2025-2028 Greater MN Highway Safety Improvement Program projects 
DATE:  Oct. 30, 2023 
 

As a comprehensive, intergovernmental transportation planning agency for the Saint Cloud 
Metropolitan Planning Area (MPA), the Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization (APO) works 
with member agencies and jurisdictions to facilitate local, state, and Federal funds for 
programs and surface transportation improvement programs. In order to accomplish this, 
the APO is tasked with prioritizing projects that align with its long-range transportation 
vision for the region. 

The Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) is a long-range, multimodal, surface 
transportation plan that identifies a regional vision for transportation and the steps 
necessary to achieve that vision. Part of those steps includes the identification of various 
transportation improvement projects within the Metropolitan Planning Area (MPA).  

In order to carry out the vision of the MTP, the APO develops and maintains a 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The TIP is a short-range (four year) 
programming document that reports on how the various agencies and jurisdictions within 
the Saint Cloud MPA have prioritized their use of limited Federal highway and transit 
funding. This document is updated on an annual basis. 

Projects contained within the TIP must either be identified within the MTP or align closely 
with the goals and objectives of the MTP. In addition, these projects are funded in part by 
the Federal Government or are projects sponsored specifically by the Minnesota 
Department of Transportation (MnDOT). 

One of the sources of transportation funding the Federal Government uses is the Highway 
Safety Improvement Program (HSIP). The goal of HSIP is to achieve a significant reduction 
in traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads and roads on tribal lands. This 
funding source requires a 10% local match with a maximum cap for a project being 
$750,000 per location. 

The 2025-2028 HSIP solicitation kicked off in mid-September by the Minnesota Department 
of Transportation’s Office of Traffic Engineering (OTE). Applications are due to OTE by no 
later than Wednesday, Nov. 22. 

As approved by the APO’s Policy Board at the June 9, 2022, meeting, HSIP projects 
occurring within the APO’s planning area must be reviewed by the APO’s TAC and Policy 
Board prior to being submitted for funding consideration. All proactive/data-driven projects 
will receive an “equal prioritization” – meaning the APO’s Policy Board will not 
rank/prioritize these projects. All reactive projects will be subject to a discussion based 
preliminary ranking by the TAC with final rankings/prioritization being handled at the Policy 
Board level. 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


Attachment F1 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

Sherburne County has indicated their intent to apply for this solicitation with the following 
project: 

• PROACTIVE/DATA-DRIVEN: Installation of transverse rumble strips at various 
intersections within Sherburne County. Note, this is part of a larger county wide 
project. 

TAC representatives reviewed the proposed project and recommended Policy Board 
approval for the county to apply for the 2025-2028 HSIP solicitation. 

Suggested Action: Approval for Sherburne County to apply for HSIP funds for a project 
within the APO’s planning area. 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


Due Nov. 22, 2023 

Application for Local HSIP Page 1 of 3 

Greater Minnesota, Local HSIP Solicitation 

Application for Federal Safety Funds 
1. Contact Information Details

Lead Agency Contact Name 

Sherburne County David Roedel 

2. Funding Detai ls

Federal Funds + Local Match = Total Cost 

$21,600 + $2,400 = $24,000 
NOTE: maximum of $750,000 in federal funds per agency per project. 

Funding Notes 
County Funds will be used for the local match 

3. Project Description

Project Description 
Transverse Rumble Strips 

ATP County or Counties Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) Tribal Government 

3 Sherburne County St. Cloud Area Planning 
Organization No 

NOTE: if any portion of the project is located within MPO boundaries, a letter of support / priority from the MPO is needed. 

Estimated Output Units 

0 Miles 

5 Intersections 

0 Curves 
NOTE: estimate output for one of three metric: number of miles, number of intersections, or number of curves. 

Preferred Funding Year(s) 

2025 

Attachment F2



4. Selection Criter ia 

Describe how project was identified. 
The intersections selected are not identified in the 2018 CRSP but were identified in the 2010 CRSP as high 
priority.  Previous improvements were made to these intersections hoping to minimize crashes.  These same 
improvements were constructed at other intersections throughout the county, and unfortunately they are 
still experiencing crashes.  The county looks at all intersection with a systemic approach and is proposing to 
continue taking a proactive role in minimizing crashes by adding Transverse Rumble Strips. 
 
 

 
Is this project in partnership with another agency?  
No 

5. Crash Data for Reactive Projects ONLY: Jan. 1,  2018 through Dec. 31, 2022 

Number of Crashes K A B C PDO Total 

All Crash Types 0 0 0 0 0 0 
NOTE: set filters to 2018 through 2022 in MnCMAT if you submit an Intersection Report or Section Report. 
 

OPTIONAL: Crashes by Basic Type K A B C PDO Total 

Pedestrian 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Bicyclist 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Single Vehicle Run-off-road 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Single Vehicle Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sideswipe Same Direction 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sideswipe Opposing Direction 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Rear End 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Head On 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Left Turn 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Angle 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 
 

OPTIONAL: Description of any unique characteristics. 
None. 

 
Reactive projects must have a benefit-cost ratio greater than 1.00; to simplify this analysis, OTE will 
conduct the calculation. An electronic copy of the analysis output will be available upon request.  

Attachment F2



6. OPTIONAL: Addit ional Notes 

Additional Notes for Selection Committee 
 
Attached is a Crash Summary Report from 2018 thru 2022.  Sherburne County has been actively improving 
intersection awareness with the installation of Streetlights, “Cross Traffic Does Not Stop” plaques on existing 
stop signs, and at some locations LED Stop Signs.  With the installation of these improvements, as shown on 
the attached layout, the county is still experiencing county wide crashes at intersection due to driver neglect.  
We feel by taking a proactive role and adding the Transverse Rumble Strips to these intersections, it will 
improve driver awareness of an upcoming intersection and prevent intersection crashes. 
 
The Crash Summary Report unfortunately is not reflecting a decrease in crashes at rural intersections.  It does 
show that overall crashes are staying relatively the same, with the exception of K and A’s.  K and A’s which 
have increased over the past 5years.  We feel this increase stems from distracted drivers, and with the 
installation of the Transvers Rumble Strip, this will improve driver awareness of an upcoming intersection.  
 
This application only applies to the proposed HSIP projects within the St. Cloud APO.  This will be included 
with a county wide solicitation for the installation of Transverse Rumble Strips at Rural Intersections 
throughout the county. 
 

7. Submiss ion Information 

Submit this application via PDF to SafetyProject.DOT@state.mn.us by November 22, 2023. 
 
Please include the following as necessary: 

• Map of project location(s) 
• County Road Safety Plan project sheet(s) 
• Letters of support 

a. Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) if within borders 
b. MnDOT District Traffic Engineer if work performed in MnDOT right-of-way 

Attachment F2

mailto:SafetyProject.DOT@state.mn.us


Attachment F2



Crash Summary
Intersection Crashes

Crash Severity/Crash Year
Crash Severity Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

K - Fatal 18 0 0 0 0 0 2 5 3 1 4 3
A - Serious Injury 37 0 0 0 0 0 3 4 7 11 11 1

B - Minor Injury 199 0 0 0 0 0 38 30 42 42 35 12
C - Possible Injury 294 0 0 0 0 0 63 55 46 58 45 27
N - Prop Dmg Only 1338 0 0 0 0 0 253 252 196 247 269 121

U - Unknown 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 1886 0 0 0 0 0 359 346 294 359 364 164

Crash Severity/Number of Vehicles
Crash Severity Total 0 1 2 3+

K - Fatal 18 0 7 11 0
A - Serious Injury 37 0 6 29 2

B - Minor Injury 199 0 28 150 21
C - Possible Injury 294 0 22 230 42
N - Prop Dmg Only 1338 0 211 1035 92

U - Unknown 0 0 0 0 0
Total 1886 0 274 1455 157

Basic Type Summary Total %
Pedestrian 5 0.3
Bike 6 0.3
Single Vehicle Run Off Road 196 10.4
Single Vehicle Other 67 3.6
Sideswipe Same Direction 112 5.9
Sideswipe Opposing 15 0.8
Rear End 774 41.0
Head On 26 1.4
Left Turn 116 6.2
Angle 496 26.3
Other 73 3.9
Total 1886 100.0

First Harmful Event Summary Total %
Pedestrian 5 0.3
Bicyclist 5 0.3
Motor Vehicle In Transport 1594 84.5
Parked Motor Vehicle 4 0.2
Train 0 0.0
Deer/Animal 46 2.4
Other - Non Fixed Object 14 0.7
Collision Fixed Object 163 8.6
Non-Collision Harmful Events 55 2.9
Other/Unknown 0 0.0
Total 1886 100.0

Relationship to Intersection Summary Total %
Not at Intersection/Interchange 0 0.0
Four-Way Intersection 1156 61.3
T or Y Intersection 374 19.8
Five-Way Intersection or More 0 0.0
Roundabout 0 0.0
Intersection Related 356 18.9
Driveway Access Related 0 0.0
At School Crossing 0 0.0
Railway Grade Crossing 0 0.0
Shared Use Path or Trail 0 0.0
Interchange or Ramp 0 0.0
Crossover Related 0 0.0
Acceleration/Deceleration Lane 0 0.0
Other/Unknown 0 0.0
Total 1886 100.0

Weather 1 Summary Total %
Clear 1149 60.9
Cloudy 433 23.0
Rain 75 4.0
Snow 179 9.5
Sleet, Hail (Freezing Rain/Drizzle) 12 0.6
Fog/Smog/Smoke 10 0.5
Blowing Sand/Soil/Dirt/Snow 20 1.1
Severe Crosswinds 2 0.1
Other/Unknown 6 0.3
Total 1886 100.0

Light Condition Summary Total %
Daylight 1335 70.8
Sunrise 47 2.5
Sunset 61 3.2
Dark (Str Lights On) 292 15.5
Dark (Str Lights Off) 10 0.5
Dark (No Str Lights) 119 6.3
Dark (Unknown Light) 18 1.0
Other/Unknown 4 0.2
Total 1886 100.0

Report Generated 10/12/2023 MnCMAT 2.0.0 Page 1 of 2

Attachment F2



Crash Summary
Intersection Crashes

Time of Day/Day of Week

From To 00:00
01:59

02:00
03:59

04:00
05:59

06:00
07:59

08:00
09:59

10:00
11:59

12:00
13:59

14:00
15:59

16:00
17:59

18:00
19:59

20:00
21:59

22:00
23:59 Total %

SUN 3 3 4 6 9 20 39 28 29 23 11 6 181 9.6
MON 3 2 13 27 21 27 28 40 49 26 17 10 263 13.9
TUE 2 3 11 50 48 19 28 46 54 28 12 5 306 16.2

WED 1 1 12 35 29 27 32 41 42 28 22 10 280 14.8
THU 0 1 14 45 34 28 31 53 50 35 15 10 316 16.8
FRI 3 2 11 31 31 29 38 51 58 36 20 13 323 17.1

SAT 6 6 1 10 14 37 32 29 30 20 20 12 217 11.5
Total 18 18 66 204 186 187 228 288 312 196 117 66 1886 100.0

% 1.0 1.0 3.5 10.8 9.9 9.9 12.1 15.3 16.5 10.4 6.2 3.5 100.0 100.0

Driver & Non-Motorist Age/Gender Summary
Age M F NR No Value Total %
<14 0 0 0 0 0 0.0

14 0 1 0 0 1 0.0
15 3 0 0 0 3 0.1
16 52 75 1 0 128 3.5
17 61 49 1 0 111 3.0
18 73 50 2 0 125 3.4
19 52 42 0 1 95 2.6
20 58 37 0 0 95 2.6

21-24 180 131 4 0 315 8.5
25-29 221 144 0 0 365 9.9
30-34 212 142 1 0 355 9.6
35-39 208 148 0 0 356 9.6
40-44 190 121 0 0 311 8.4
45-49 166 100 0 0 266 7.2
50-54 153 110 0 0 263 7.1
55-59 166 98 0 0 264 7.2
60-64 143 69 0 0 212 5.7
65-69 81 50 0 0 131 3.6
70-74 77 37 0 0 114 3.1
75-79 44 30 0 0 74 2.0
80-84 21 16 0 0 37 1.0
85-89 9 6 0 0 15 0.4
90-94 7 2 0 0 9 0.2

95+ 1 0 0 0 1 0.0
No Value 0 0 0 44 44 1.2

Total 2178 1458 9 45 3690 100.0
% 59.0 39.5 0.2 1.2 100.0 100.0

Month Summary Total %
January 178 9.4
February 182 9.7
March 147 7.8
April 131 6.9
May 137 7.3
June 173 9.2
July 146 7.7
August 157 8.3
September 159 8.4
October 148 7.8
November 141 7.5
December 187 9.9
Total 1886 100.0

Physical Condition Summary Total %
Apparently Normal (Including No Drugs/Alcohol) 3448 94.6
Physical Disability (Short Term or Long Term) 2 0.1
Medical Issue (Ill, Sick or Fainted) 7 0.2
Emotional (Depression, Angry, Disturbed, etc.) 6 0.2
Asleep or Fatigued 35 1.0
Has Been Drinking Alcohol 66 1.8
Has Been Taking Illicit Drugs 10 0.3
Has Been Taking Medications 2 0.1
Other/Unknown 70 1.9
Not Applicable 0 0.0
Total 3646 100.0

Selection Filter:
WORK AREA: County('659515') - FILTER: County('659515'), Basic Type('1','2','3','4','5','6','7','8','9','10','90'), Crash Severity('1','2','3','4','5','0'), Relationship to
Intersection('3','4','10'), Route System('02','03','04','07'), Year('2018','2019','2020','2021','2022','2023')

Analyst:
Daniel Knapek

Notes:
 

Report Generated 10/12/2023 MnCMAT 2.0.0 Page 2 of 2

Attachment F2



Attachment F3 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

 

 

 
1040 County Road 4, Saint Cloud, MN 56303-0643 

T. 320.252.7568 F. 320.252.6557 

 

TO:  Girma Feyissa, MnDOT Traffic Safety Engineer; Derek Leuer, MnDOT Traffic 
Safety Engineer; Eric DeVoe, Senior Research Analysis Specialist 

FROM:  Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization Policy Board 
RE:  2025-2028 Proactive Highway Safety Improvement Program Project 

Rankings/Prioritization 
DATE:  Nov. 9, 2023 
 

The Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization (APO) Policy Board took action at its Nov. 9, 
2023, meeting to review one proposed proactive Highway Safety Improvement Program 
(HSIP) project occurring within the APO’s planning area. 

Sherburne County is proposing to install transverse rumble strips at several intersections 
within Haven Township – which is located within the Saint Cloud APO’s planning area. This 
will be part of a larger countywide deployment of transverse rumble strips at various 
intersections. Completion of this project is consistent with the APO’s 2045 Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan’s goal to develop and maintain a transportation system that is safe for 
all users (Goal 1). 

We would strongly encourage the HSIP review/scoring committee to allocate funding for 
this project. 

 

 

 

 

______________________________  _______________________________ 
Commissioner Raeanne Danielowski   Date  Brian Gibson, PTP   Date 
Chair, APO Policy Board    APO Executive Director 

 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


Attachment G1 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

 

 

 
1040 County Road 4, Saint Cloud, MN 56303-0643 

T. 320.252.7568 F. 320.252.6557 

 

TO:   Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization Policy Board 
FROM:  Vicki Johnson, Senior Transportation Planner 
RE:  Looking Ahead 2050 Objectives, Strategies, and Performance Measures 
DATE:  Oct. 30, 2023 
 

A Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) is a long-range, multimodal, regional surface 
transportation plan that identifies a regional vision for transportation and the steps toward 
achieving that vision. 

MTPs are a joint product of all individual jurisdictions within a metropolitan planning area 
(MPA) and represent a singular, agreed upon vision for the future of transportation within 
that region.  

By Federal regulation, MTPs must have a planning horizon of at least 20 years and must be 
updated no less than every five years (or every four years if the region does not meet 
certain air quality standards). 

Contained within the MTP are regional goals, objectives, and implementing strategies which 
assist MPA planners, engineers, and elected officials in achieving the region’s vision. 

Thus far in the planning process, APO staff has brought forth the following sections of the 
2050 MTP for TAC recommendation: 

• Looking Ahead 2050 Visioning Themes. 

• Looking Ahead 2050 Existing Conditions. 

• Looking Ahead 2050 Environmental Information. 

• Looking Ahead 2050 Project Lists. 

• Looking Ahead 2050 Build and Build + Beltline Model Results. 

Each of these sections has been approved by the APO’s Policy Board for inclusion into our 
final draft of the 2050 MTP. 

This next section for your consideration pertains to the objectives, strategies, and 
performance measures that will be utilized to carry out our six visioning themes. Those 
approved visioning themes include: 

• System and Environmental Stewardship: Protecting and preserving our existing 
infrastructure and environmental assets. 

• Multimodal Connections: Providing a safe and equitable multimodal transportation 
network affordable for people of all ages and abilities to travel using their preferred 
modal choice. 

• Congestion Management: Mindfully planning, developing, and operating an 
innovative transportation network to minimize unnecessary travel delays. 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


Attachment G1 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

• Transportation Safety: Reducing fatalities and serious injuries by planning, 
designing, and building safe infrastructure and improving driving behavior. 

• Interregional Connections: Supporting an economically vibrant region through 
developing and preserving vital connections to other state, national, and global 
centers of commerce. 

• Technological Advancements: Understanding and planning for future innovative 
transportation technologies and encouraging their presence and incorporation into 
the region’s existing transportation network. 

To help the region achieve the six visionary statements listed above, APO staff have worked 
closely to develop objectives and strategies to assist us (the APO, staff, and 
jurisdictional/agency partners) in creating our desired transportation network. 

The objectives and strategies identified in the draft are consistent with the goals outlined 
by U.S. Department of Transportation, the State of Minnesota (as statutorily directed), as 
well as policies adopted as part of the Minnesota Department of Transportation’s State 
Multimodal Transportation Plan (SMTP). 

In addition to outlining the desired objectives and strategies, this chapter also identifies 
various performance measures and/or indicators APO staff will be monitoring to ensure 
progress is being made toward those desired visionary statements. 

At the Oct. 26, 2023, TAC meeting, TAC representatives recommended Policy Board 
approval of the draft chapter. 

Suggested Action: Approval of the draft Looking Ahead 2050 Goals, Objectives, Strategies, and 
Performance Measures Chapter. 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


x

Introduction 

Now that we have a pretty good handle on where we are (based on the groundwork discussed in both the existing conditions 
and environmental section), our next step is to figure out where we want to go. 

After we’ve evaluated our current situation (both what is and is not working well) we need to identify a path forward and a 
means to get there. This chapter is designed to do just that.  

As we Look Ahead to 2050, we need to come to an agreed upon destination. Assisting transportation planners, engineers, and 
local policymakers in this process is the creation of a transportation vision – answering the question of what we would like to 
achieve during this planning horizon. These higher-level visionary statements are meant to serve as aspirational goals for the 
region’s transportation network. 

Using objectives and strategies, we as a region can then start taking purposeful action steps to execute our goals. Keeping us 
in check along the way is a series of performance measures which allow us to assess our progress and/or redirect our efforts as 
needed. 

Guiding our Goals at the National and State Level 

While the APO does establish their own regional vision (goals), objectives, and strategies as part of the MTP process; these 
must be consistent with goals established at both the national and state levels. Because the APO is a recipient of Federal and 
State transportation funding which is used to carry out various programs – including the ultimate expenditure of Federal and/or 
State transportation funding for infrastructure – it is crucial that this plan’s goals, objectives, and strategies are compliant.  

1

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

 

Figure X.1: National surface transportation goals. 

2

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

 

Figure X.2: The 16 statutory transportation goals for the State of Minnesota. 

3

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

MnDOT Policy Guidance 
Over a decade ago the State of Minnesota launched a visioning process to “better align the transportation system with what 
Minnesotans expect for their quality of life, economy, and natural environment.” Known as Minnesota GO, this 50-year 
statewide vision established guiding principles regarding the future of transportation for the state by answering the question: 
“What are we trying to achieve with transportation over the next 50 years?” 

In 2011 the state adopted the following vision: “Minnesota’s multimodal transportation system maximizes the health of people, 
the environment, and our economy.”  

 
Figure X.3: A list of the guiding principles for the Minnesota GO Vision. 

To assist in executing the policy portion of the vision, MnDOT has developed its Statewide Multimodal Transportation Plan 
(SMTP) (https://tinyurl.com/m5bb5ud9). The SMTP is Minnesota’s highest level policy plan for transportation and provides 
direction to move the state’s transportation system forward.  

With the latest update to the SMTP, the state has prioritized six key areas to focus their efforts. 

4

                                                      Attachment G2

https://minnesotago.org/final-plans/smtp-final-plan-2022
https://minnesotago.org/final-plans/smtp-final-plan-2022


 

 
     

x 

1. Transportation Safety: Safeguard transportation users as well as the communities the system travels through. 
Apply proven strategies to reduce fatalities and serious injuries for all modes. Foster a culture of transportation safety in 
Minnesota. 

2. System Stewardship: Strategically build, maintain, operate, and adapt the transportation system based on data, 
performance, and community needs. Ensure effective and efficient use of resources. 

3. Climate Action: Advance a sustainable and resilient transportation system. Enhance transportation options and 
technology to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Adapt Minnesota’s transportation system to a changing climate. 

4. Critical Connections: Maintain and improve multimodal transportation connections essential for Minnesotans’ prosperity 
and quality of life. Strategically consider new connections that help meet performance targets and maximize social, 
economic and environmental benefits. 

5. Healthy Equitable Communities: Foster healthy and vibrant places that reduce disparities and promote healthy outcomes 
for people, the environment, and our economy. 

6. Open Decision Making: Make equitable transportation decisions through inclusive and collaborative processes that are 
supported by data and analysis. 

Each of these focus areas has a series of objective statements as well as strategies and actions to support the achievement of 
these focus areas and that will ultimately contribute to the success of the Minnesota GO Vision. 

As stated earlier, the APO’s MTP must be consistent with the policies laid out by MnDOT including the ones established in the 
SMTP. 

The Looking Ahead 2050 Visioning Process 

Soon after the development of the 2045 MTP, APO staff sought to facilitate a community-wide visioning process to assist in the 
development of this long-range plan – Looking Ahead 2050. Utilizing a variety of public engagement tools and strategies, APO 
staff sought to understand the issues and priorities residents of the Saint Cloud MPA have regarding the regional transportation 
network. 

During this visioning process, approximately 2,000 responses were collected and reviewed. Each of these responses were 
recorded and subsequently categorized into six themes in which the public believes the region should strive to achieve by 
planning horizon 2050. Those themes are: 

• System and Environmental Stewardship: Protecting and preserving our existing infrastructure and environmental 
assets. 

• Multimodal Connections: Providing a safe and equitable multimodal transportation network affordable for people of all 
ages and abilities to travel using their preferred modal choice. 

5

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

• Congestion Management: Mindfully planning, developing, and operating an innovative transportation network to 
minimize unnecessary travel delays. 

• Transportation Safety: Reducing fatalities and serious injuries by planning, designing, and building safe infrastructure 
and improving driving behavior. 

• Interregional Connections: Supporting an economically vibrant region through developing and preserving vital 
connections to other state, national, and global centers of commerce. 

• Technological Advancements: Understanding and planning for future innovative transportation technologies and 
encouraging their presence and incorporation into the region’s existing transportation network. 

These visioning statements/themes serve as the foundational goals for the overall direction of the Looking Ahead 2050 MTP. In 
addition, these statements will serve as the guiding direction for the APO’s planning efforts and ultimate the implementation of 
various infrastructure projects and/or policies for the region. 

Appendix X provides a detailed overview of the APO’s visioning process. 

In the sections that follow, each of these visioning statements/goals will be further addressed through the identification of 
objectives and strategies to be implemented by the APO and/or its planning partners.  

System and Environmental Stewardship 

Transportation infrastructure is a significant public investment. And as such, care should be taken to preserve and protect that 
investment. According to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), delaying maintenance and repair of pavement until it has 
gone beyond its effective service life will be significantly more expensive than regularly scheduled preservation treatments. As 
stated in the article “Pavement Preservation: Preserving Our Investment in Highways” (https://tinyurl.com/muacwrr8), authors 
Robert Davies and Jim Sorenson state that while pavement will not last forever, preservation activities reduce the rate of 
deterioration. Being proactive in preservation treatments – i.e., applying treatment to pavement when it is still in relatively 
good condition with no structural damage – results in an “extension of the service life of the original pavement, and extending 
the service life instead of having to rehabilitate the pavement translates into a savings in funds and a better overall ride 
quality.”  

In addition to preserving transportation assets such as roadways and bridges, it is important transportation planners 
understand the role this sector plays in terms of our region’s natural resources. As stated in Chapter X (environmental chapter), 
transportation has both a direct (i.e., greenhouse gas emissions) and indirect (i.e., water quality and wildlife habitat) impact on 
the natural environment. As a contributing factor in climate change, the U.S. Department of Transportation 
(https://tinyurl.com/22z9cmtn) has outlined the responsibility the transportation sector has in finding a solution to the climate 
crisis. At the state level, MnDOT’s SMTP outlines the importance of the state’s natural resources and a commitment to 
minimizing harm to the environment. 

6

                                                      Attachment G2

https://highways.dot.gov/public-roads/januaryfebruary-2000/pavement-preservation-preserving-our-investment-highways#:%7E:text=With%20timely%20preservation%2C%20we%20can,%2C%20smoother%2C%20longer%20lasting%20pavements.
https://www.transportation.gov/priorities/climate-and-sustainability/climate-action


 

 
     

x 

 

Figure X.4: Cracking pavement along Graniteview Road in Waite Park taken in 2019. 
Photo courtesy Saint Cloud APO. 

What Does the Public Think? 
The following is a representative sample of the comments received during the initial public input period as they pertain to the 
System and Environmental Stewardship Visioning Theme. 

• “We need to be sure that we maintain our roads as needed, we have some roads that need attention.” 
• “Improve the condition of our roads and highways.” 
• “Repair bad roads and keep up with them.” 
• “Resurface the many streets that are REALLY rough – bad on drivers and passengers.” 
• “Better roads and sidewalks would be the best way to improve transportation. Right now they are broken and 

dangerous.” 

7

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

• “Some of the roads need to be retarred. Over by the Technical Community College especially, on the north side and 
all roads over there. The roads are so bumpy and cracked it makes the ride uncomfortable.” 

• “Finding ways that are ‘greener’ to save our environment.” 
• “Decrease carbon footprint.” 
• “Reverse the effects of global warming.” 
• “We need to develop e-car charging stations that are environmentally friendly (solar), accessible throughout the 

community and affordable.” 
• “More availability of eco-friendly transportation.” 

How to Address This Vision 
In order to make progress toward achieving this visionary statement, the APO is committed to the following objectives and 
strategies: 

1. Prioritize the maintenance and preservation of the existing transportation network. 
a. The APO shall maintain and regularly update its pavement condition database to help identify areas in need of 

repair. 
b. The APO shall develop and maintain a planning and programming process that prioritizes funding for bridges with 

a “poor” condition rating and roadways with a “poor” International Roughness Index (IRI) rating more highly than 
other bridges or roadways. 

c. APO staff shall maintain and regularly update its shared use path pavement condition database to help identify 
areas in need of repair. 

2. Invest in cost-effective transportation solutions. 
a. The APO jurisdictional members shall use life-cycle cost estimates when evaluating the cost-effectiveness of 

potential changes to the transportation system. 
3. Efficiently manage the transportation system. 

a. APO staff will develop and regularly report on performance measures aimed at evaluating how efficiently and 
effectively the transportation systems are being operated/managed. 

b. APO jurisdictional members shall regularly monitor and adjust traffic signal timings to improve traffic flow.  
4. Protect the environment through the promotion of climate resilient transportation practices. 

a. APO staff will monitor air and water quality to help ensure compliance with national and state quality standards. 
b. The APO will work to support and promote transportation options with the smallest net environmental impact. 
c. The APO staff and jurisdictional members shall integrate and encourage the integration of climate change 

considerations into transportation decision making and evaluate opportunities to mitigate risks. 
5. Prevent and/or minimize disproportionate adverse impacts to communities containing a high level of low-income 

households and/or areas with high concentrations of Black, Indigenous, and People of Color (BIPOC) populations. 
a. APO staff will monitor and regularly report on transportation impacts to neighborhoods with higher percentages of 

low-income households and/or areas with high concentrations of BIPOC populations. 

8

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

Measuring Progress 
Performance measures provide useful feedback on how the APO is doing in terms of achieving its desired vision/goals. 
Performance management ensures the most efficient investment of transportation funds by increasing accountability, providing 
transparency, and linking investment decisions to key outcomes.  

The following is a list of performance measures the APO will utilize to document progress toward the System and Environmental 
Stewardship Visionary Statement. 

• *Interstate System Pavement Conditions. 
• *Non-Interstate National Highway System (NHS) Pavement Conditions. 
• Functionally Classified Roadway Pavement Conditions. 
• *National Highway System (NHS) Bridge Conditions. 
• Systemwide Bridge Conditions. 
• Annual Air Quality. 

Note, the performance measures denoted with an “*” are federally-required performance measures. For details on how each 
performance measure is calculated, please see Appendix X. 

Multimodal Connections 

As stated in Chapter X (Existing Conditions), not everyone in the Saint Cloud MPA has or wants to rely on a motor vehicle to 
complete every trip. 

Active (i.e., walking and biking) and public transportation are important components of the transportation network. However, 
according to author Todd Litman with the Victoria Transport Policy Institute, over the last century these forms of transportation 
have often taken a backseat to the automobile. As a result, Litman writes, such focus has essentially ignored the needs of non-
vehicle travel demands.  

In his paper titled “Introduction to Multi-Modal Transportation Planning: Principles and Practices” 
(https://tinyurl.com/2s42nrd2), Litman states, “Of course, not everybody uses all travel options, but most communities include 
people who need each one.” 

Multimodal options are critical components needed to develop an equitable transportation network for all users. Transportation 
– and in particular reliable and safe access to it – can be a barrier for some individuals including those in the BIPOC community, 
people with disabilities, people with low incomes, and people with limited English proficiency for example. Using the 2009 
National Household Travel Survey, Litman concluded a typical community in the U.S. has approximately 20-40% of its total 
population unable to drive due to disability, economics, age constraints, or vehicle failures. Low to minimal cost alternatives to 
owning and/or maintaining a vehicle can provide individuals who rely on active or public forms of transportation the opportunity 
to be connected to employment, education, recreation, goods, and services.  

9

                                                      Attachment G2

https://tinyurl.com/2s42nrd2


 

 
     

x 

 
Figure X.5: Students and parents crossing the street outside of Pleasantview Elementary School in Sauk Rapids. 
Photo courtesy Saint Cloud APO. 

What Does the Public Think? 
The following is a representative sample of the comments received during the initial public input period as they pertain to the 
Multimodal Connections Visioning Theme. 

• “Better care of our sidewalks. In particular, sidewalks should be cleared and salted by city workers during winter months 
to ensure that mobility challenged citizens are able to move safely and freely around the city at any time of the year.” 

• “Transportation policies and practices that prioritize people, not cars.” 
• “Make pedal biking and walking more accessible. I.e.: Make more bike lanes and walking paths or make some areas 

safer to bike/walk. Thanks!” 
• “I live in St. Joe and I don’t need a public bus. In the future if I need to, I would like to get public service from St. 

Joseph into St. Cloud.” 
• “Expanded paratransit and disability services.” 
• “I also think increasing the size of the bus network and its frequency of trips will be beneficial as currently many routes 

are quite long or require waiting for long intervals to arrive.” 

10

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

• “I do think those who can not drive or have a disability need public transportation so it’s a toss up to have it 
support itself and to be tax funded.” 

• “It would be beneficial to have access to public transportation out here. We don’t have access to Tri-CAP or Dial A Ride. 
With a developmentally delayed adult son in my home, those transportation opportunities would be so helpful. On weeks 
I work 3-4 shifts, we spend over $50/day in taxis to get him to and from work.” 

• “Car dependence is convenient but prohibitively expensive.” 
• “Transportation needs to be cheaper and more affordable to all.” 

How to Address this Vision 
In order to make progress toward achieving this visionary statement, the APO is committed to the following objectives and 
strategies: 

1. Identify and maintain viable non-motorized transportation options. 
a. APO staff will identify, map, and monitor the use of bicycle and pedestrian routes and facilities to determine gaps 

in the network and opportunities for improvements. 
b. APO staff and jurisdictional members will work cooperatively to maintain and implement the regional active 

transportation plan. 
c. APO staff will continue to coordinate with MnDOT regarding where regional and statewide bicycle facilities enter 

the Saint Cloud metro area and where they intersect with other local and regional facilities. 
d. APO staff and Metro Bus will work cooperatively to ensure achievement and maintenance of a state of good repair 

for public transit assets. 
2. Increase the accessibility and efficient mobility of people. 

a. APO staff and jurisdictional members will encourage and support, to the extent possible, collaborative efforts with 
public and private transportation providers to ensure coordination of services, optimal sure of resources, and 
filling of service gaps. 

b. APO staff and jurisdictional members will encourage and support transportation facilities that are compliant with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and meet Title VI, Title II, and other environmental justice 
requirements. 

3. Enhance connectivity across and between modes of transportation. 
a. APO staff shall complete a feasibility study on possible micromobility options for the region and their potential to 

augment, supplement, or replace other transportation options for residents. 
b. The APO staff and Metro Bus will work cooperatively to regularly evaluate bus stops, bus shelter locations, 

condition, and auxiliary amenities to help ensure the needs of the traveling public are being met. Such an 
evaluation shall also include an evaluation of ADA-compliant access to stop locations. 

c. APO staff and Metro Bus will work cooperatively to regularly evaluate urban public transit routes and services to 
help ensure efficient operations and optimal ridership. 

11

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

Measuring Progress 
Performance measures provide useful feedback on how the APO is doing in terms of achieving its desired vision/goals. 
Performance management ensures the most efficient investment of transportation funds by increasing accountability, providing 
transparency, and linking investment decisions to key outcomes. 

The following is a list of performance measures the APO will utilize to document progress toward the Multimodal Connections 
Visionary Statement. 

• *TRANSIT: State of Good Repair for Equipment, Facilities, and Rolling Stock. 
• TRANSIT: Passengers Per Revenue Hour. 
• TRANSIT: Number of Annual Transit Riders. 
• *TRANSIT: Total Number and Rate of Reportable Events Per Total Vehicle Revenue Miles by Mode. 

Note, the performance measures denoted with an “*” are federally-required performance measures. For details on how each 
performance measure is calculated, please see Appendix X. 

Congestion Management 

Slow moving vehicles. Stop and go traffic. An increase in travel time. All signs of a common traffic problem known as 
congestion. Author James Brasuell describes congestion as a supply and demand imbalance – with more cars on the road than 
the space on the road allows. In his article,  “Planning and the Complicated Causes and Effects of Congestion” 
(https://tinyurl.com/y2xrkvz), Brasuell writes: “Depending on the time of day, and the surrounding population and workforce 
densities, and the conditions of the road and its intersections, demand for the roadway can increase up to and beyond the point 
of saturation – when the volume of cars using the road is greater than the capacity of the road.” 

While we have an understanding of the effects of congestion – i.e., slower speeds, increases in travel delay, increases in fuel 
consumption – the causes of congestion are multifaceted and are often acting alongside each other. The Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) has outlined seven root causes of congestion according to the report “Traffic Congestion and Reliability: 
Trends and Advanced Strategies for Congestion Mitigation” (https://tinyurl.com/23mjwzr3): 

1. Traffic Incidents. 
2. Work Zones. 
3. Weather. 
4. Fluctuations in Normal Traffic. 
5. Special Events. 
6. Traffic Control Devices. 
7. Physical Bottlenecks. 

12

                                                      Attachment G2

https://www.planetizen.com/features/116834-planning-and-complicated-causes-and-effects-congestion
https://tinyurl.com/y2xrkvz
https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/congestion_report/chapter2.htm
https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/congestion_report/chapter2.htm


 

 
     

x 

 
Figure X.6: Intersection of MN 15 at Veterans Drive/Eighth Street N in Saint Cloud. 
Photo courtesy of Saint Cloud APO. 

As the FHWA report indicates, “The problem is that with the exception of the physical bottlenecks, the sources of congestion 
occur with maddening irregularity – nothing is ever the same from one day to the next.” 

There is no one solution to eliminating congestion within a certain region. However, several tactics employed strategically can 
improve (or manage) the effects of congestion on our roadways. 

13

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

What Does the Public Think? 
The following is a representative sample of the comments received during the initial public input period as they pertain to the 
Congestion Management Visioning Theme. 

• “Too many cars on same roads at peak travel times.” 
• “St. Cloud division is too congested.” 
• “I try to avoid traveling through St. Cloud because of all the traffic lights/congestion.” 
• “Upgrade traffic lanes to accommodate volume of cars.” 
• “Getting anywhere in this city requires going through SEVERAL stoplights. Although I believe there are plans for a ‘loop’ 

why are the main highways controlled by traffic lights? Highway 15, Highway 10, Highway 23 all inundated by 
stoplights.” 

• “Another contributing factor is the length of stoplights. Crossing any of the major roads takes an eternity and God forbid 
an emergency vehicle needs to go through and resets the cycle. The lights to cross the major roads in Saint Cloud need 
to be more frequent. The amount of gas and time that is wasted just sitting at traffic lights is ridiculous.” 

• “I would rather drive anywhere in the Twin Cities than Division Street in St. Cloud.” 
• “Area needs a ring road or a bypass circling the St Cloud metropolitan area.” 
• “Find a way around the St. Cloud city. It sucks having to drive thru the city to get from west to east. Need a roadway 

that goes around the city.” 
• “We need a closer look at the traffic on Division Street. There are huge trucks that use that route during rush hours. Can 

this be restricted? Can we offer an alternative route for trade vehicles? 
• “There needs to be a truck bypass rather than truck traffic clogging our city.” 

How to Address this Vision 
In order to make progress toward achieving this visionary statement, the APO is committed to the following objectives and 
strategies: 

1. Increase mobility of people and freight. 
a. APO staff will continue to collect and analyze data related to travel time reliability, level of service, and vehicle 

miles traveled to identify areas for congestion mitigation measures. 
b. The APO jurisdictional members will, to the extent possible, take measure to ensure appropriate densities and 

mixing of appropriate land uses to help reduce commute distances, encourage non-motorized options, and 
maximize the efficient delivery of public services to residents. 

c. The APO will continue to explore the feasibility, costs, and potential benefits of an urban beltline corridor for 
longer distance and through movements around the MPA. 

14

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

Measuring Progress 
Performance measures provide useful feedback on how the APO is doing in terms of achieving its desired vision/goals. 
Performance management ensures the most efficient investment of transportation funds by increasing accountability, providing 
transparency, and linking investment decisions to key outcomes. 

The following is a list of performance measures the APO will utilize to document progress toward the Congestion Management 
Visionary Statement. 

• *Annual Percent of Person-Miles Traveled on the Interstate that are Reliable. 
• *Annual Percent of Person-Miles Traveled on the Non-Interstate NHS that are Reliable. 
• Annual Vehicle Miles Traveled. 

Note, the performance measures denoted with an “*” are federally-required performance measures. For details on how each 
performance measure is calculated, please see Appendix X. 

Transportation Safety 

Safety is of the utmost importance when it comes to the transportation network.  

As the SMTP points out, “ensuring transportation user safety applies to all people who use the transportation system regardless 
of their mode of travel, as well as transportation workers.”  

Nationwide, safety has generally improved on the country’s roadways over the last 40 years with fewer deaths and serious 
injuries reported annually. However, according to MnDOT’s 2022 General Transportation Safety Trend Analysis report 
(https://tinyurl.com/52htaz3s), trends in fatalities and serious injuries among motorcyclists, bicyclists, and pedestrians have 
been on the rise.  

At the state level, MnDOT’s approach to transportation safety includes embracing the six principles of Safe Systems. Those 
principles include: 

1. Death/serious injury is unacceptable. 
2. People make mistakes. 
3. Humans are vulnerable. 
4. Responsibility is shared. 
5. Safety is proactive. 
6. Redundancy is crucial. 

Taken together, the Safe System Approach establishes the groundwork toward building a culture of safety rooted in a people-
centered way. Through initiatives like Toward Zero Deaths (TZD) and Safe Routes to School (SRTS), the state is working 
toward reducing the number of fatalities and serious injuries on Minnesota roadways.

15

                                                      Attachment G2

https://minnesotago.org/application/files/9316/5644/2069/GeneralTransportationSafety_Final.pdf


 

 
     

x 

What Does the Public Think? 
The following is a representative sample of the comments 
received during the initial public input period as they pertain 
to the Transportation Safety Visioning Theme. 

• “Driving scares me. Especially in St. Cloud. I try my 
hardest to avoid it. Too many accidents. People on 
their phones and not paying attention.” 

• “More education for drivers to look out for bikers and 
pedestrians.” 

• “Stop the speeding and impatient drivers.” 
• “Slower speed limits and/or more stop signs may be 

beneficial on side roads as people tend to drive 
recklessly, and there are kids, bicycles, and people 
walking dogs, etc.” 

• “More enforcement on the roads.” 
• “Saint Cloud highway complex is the number 1 and 

number 2 worst in the state of Minnesota, it’s the 
worst for accidents.” 

• “Fifth Avenue and University roundabout is called 
‘the wheel of death.’” 

• “More roundabouts. They seem to be much safer 
than traffic lights.” 

• “We need safer roads – people do not understand 
how to use roundabouts or how to stop at stop signs 
and red lights.” 

• “Also, when I am riding in a car we need to enforce 
people rolling into stop signs and people running 
stop signs. It is something that I see all of the time 
at least twice a day and it needs to be fixed.” 

• “With the increase of cell phone use and driver 
distraction, I no longer feel safe biking on rural 

roadways trusting that a motorist will see me 
and give me safe passage.” 

 
Figure X.7: Vehicle crash on North Benton Drive in the City of Sauk 
Rapids. 
Photo courtesy of Saint Cloud APO.  

16

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

How to Address this Vision 
In order to make progress toward achieving this visionary statement, the APO is committed to the following objectives and 
strategies: 

1. Build and maintain roadways that include appropriate safety infrastructure to help prevent crashes. 
a. The APO jurisdictional members will, to the extent possible, implement appropriate traffic safety infrastructure 

based on roadway context to minimize fatal and serious injury crashes. 
2. Identify and prioritize high-crash locations for investment and/or mitigation activities, as warranted. 

a. APO staff will continue to monitor crash rates on the Federal-Aid roadway system to help identify high-crash 
locations and potential causes of crashes. 

3. Reduce the regional rates of bicycle and pedestrian fatalities and serious injuries. 
a. APO staff will collect and evaluate bicycle and pedestrian crash data to help determine the most common causes 

of fatalities and serious injuries and to identify action steps for the mitigation of crashes. 
b. APO staff will continue to work with organizations and government agencies on multimodal transportation 

projects and programs that enhance access to schools through MnDOT’s Safe Routes to School program. 
c. APO staff and jurisdictional members will, to the extent possible, integrate active transportation safety measures 

into transportation infrastructure projects. 
4. Support, to the extent practical, efforts by outside agencies and stakeholders to improve driving behavior. 

a. APO staff will continue their participation in the East Central Minnesota Toward Zero Deaths program. 
b. APO staff will maintain and regularly update a comprehensive regional traffic safety action plan. 

5. Support, to the extent practical, a safe transit system. 
a. APO staff, in cooperation with Metro Bus staff, will monitor and report on transit safety performance. 

Measuring Progress 
Performance measures provide useful feedback on how the APO is doing in terms of achieving its desired vision/goals. 
Performance management ensures the most efficient investment of transportation funds by increasing accountability, providing 
transparency, and linking investment decisions to key outcomes. 

The following is a list of performance measures the APO will utilize to document progress toward the Transportation Safety 
Visionary Statement. 

• *Number of Fatalities – Five Year Rolling Average. 
• *Rate of Fatalities – Five Year Rolling Average. 
• *Number of Serious Injuries – Five Year Rolling Average. 
• *Rate of Serious Injuries -- Five Year Rolling Average. 
• *Number of Non-Motorized Fatalities and Serious Injuries – Five Year Rolling Average. 
• Number and Percent of Crashes, Fatalities, and Serious Injuries that Involved Chemical Impairment – Five Year Rolling 

Average. 

17

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

• Number and Percent of Crashes, Fatalities, and Serious Injuries that Involved Distracted Driving – Five Year Rolling 
Average. 

• *TRANSIT: Number and Rate of Fatalities – Annual. 
• *TRANSIT: Number and Rate of Injuries – Annual. 
• *TRANSIT: Number and Rate of Safety Events – Annual. 

Note, the performance measures denoted with an “*” are federally-required performance measures. For details on how each 
performance measure is calculated, please see Appendix X. 

Interregional Connections 

Regional economic development experts agree transportation plays an integral role in furthering the prosperity of an area. 
Authors Dr. Jean-Paul Rodrigue and Dr. Theo Notteboom argue in their book The Geography of Transport Systems 
(https://tinyurl.com/8e9c8vt2) that economic activities cannot take place without an infrastructure base. Efficient and 
interconnected transportation, they state, provides numerous economic and social opportunities such as better accessibility to 
markets and employment. “A poor transport service level can negatively affect the competitiveness of regions and their 
economic activities and thus impair the regional added value, economic opportunities, and employment.” 

 
Figure X.8: Excerpt from The Geography of Transport Systems by authors Dr. Jean-Paul Rodrigue and Dr. Theo Nottenboom. 

The Saint Cloud MPA is not a self-sustaining economy. As stated in Chapter X (Existing Conditions), thousands of individuals 
both enter and leave the MPA for employment. Vital freight networks such as I-94, US 10, MN 15, and MN 23 run throughout 
the region transporting goods to market. This is on top of the region’s airport and railway network. Connections not only within 
the MPA but outside of the MPA to areas like the Twin Cities, greater Minnesota, and even nationally/internationally are critical 
to sustaining the economic vibrancy of the MPA. Focus on preserving and protecting key roadway corridors not only helps 
facilitate interregional travel, but also puts our region on the “radar” of firms interested in locating to or staying within the 
planning area. 

18

                                                      Attachment G2

https://transportgeography.org/contents/chapter3/transportation-and-economic-development/
https://tinyurl.com/8e9c8vt2


 

 
     

x 

What Does the Public Think? 
The following is a representative sample of the comments received during the initial public input period as they pertain to the 
Interregional Connections Visioning Theme. 

• “Better connections between Twin Cities and Sauk Rapids MN area.” 
• “I believe there needs to be a transportation system linking St. Cloud to Minneapolis/St. Pual to connect to opportunities 

there.” 
• “More options to travel to Minneapolis airports.” 
• “We need ways to get to the Twin Cities besides driving on I-94 and Highway 10.” 
• “Improved options for commuters for mass transit to the Twin Cities from St. Cloud.” 
• “Improve transportation means for long distance traveling, like railways, buses, etc. not just flights.” 
• “Easier travel to/from the cities.” 
• “Competitively priced transport to Minneapolis airport.” 
• “I also would like the St. Cloud airport to be utilized more as if I need to fly somewhere I look there first.” 
• “Get the rail to St. Cloud.” 
• “Commuter rail that reaches all the way to St. Cloud. I would use it way more often than. I drive now to visit family in 

the Twin Cities area. 
• “Trains from Minneapolis to St. Cloud, Duluth, Rochester.” 
• “We also need the light rail to finish its track to St. Cloud. People I know who do no have transportation are very rarely 

able to go to the cities. We could have much greater tourism and economic benefit long term if the two urban areas 
were linked by train.” 

How to Address this Vision 
In order to make progress toward achieving this visionary statement, the APO is committed to the following objectives and 
strategies: 

1. Promote the efficient movement of people. 
a. The APO, to the extent possible, will coordinate with jurisdictional and agency partners to identify, preserve, and 

enhance long-distance commuter connections, including, but not limited to, the extension of the Northstar 
Commuter Rail to the Saint Cloud metro. 

b. The APO will support, as appropriate, further integration of the Saint Cloud Regional Airport into the regional 
transportation network, including, but not limited to, the desire for additional commercial passenger services. 

c. The APO will support, as appropriate, multimodal connections to interregional transportation options such as 
Jefferson Lines, Amtrak, Tri-CAP, Northstar Commuter Rail, the Saint Cloud Regional Airport, etc. 

2. Promote the efficient movement of goods and freight. 
a. APO staff shall keep abreast of economic development patterns and will promote consistency between economic 

development plans and transportation plans. 

19

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

b. APO staff and jurisdictional members will explore and implement, as prudent, freight movement performance 
data collection and analysis for all freight network tiers. 

Measuring Progress 
Performance measures provide useful feedback on how the APO is doing in terms of achieving its desired vision/goals. 
Performance management ensures the most efficient investment of transportation funds by increasing accountability, providing 
transparency, and linking investment decisions to key outcomes. 

The following is a list of performance measures the APO will utilize to document progress toward the Interregional Connections 
Visionary Statement. 

• *Truck Travel Time Reliability Index for Tier 1 Freight Network. 
• Work Trip Commute Time and Distance for Jobs Located in the MPA. 

Note, the performance measures denoted with an “*” are federally-required performance measures. For details on how each 
performance measure is calculated, please see Appendix X. 

Technological Advancements 

It comes as no surprise that technology has and continues to evolve. This is incredibly apparent in the transportation sector 
where over the past decade, innovations within the industry have exploded. 

Author Paul Lewis states in his article “Transportation is being changed by technology. But what about our transportation 
policies?” (https://tinyurl.com/3zdb2xac) the last real fundamental changes made to the nation’s surface transportation system 
was during the 1960s and 1970s with the “massive build-out” of highways and transit systems. “While most of our 
transportation system has been funded and structured around moving vehicles, the widespread use of individualized technology 
has forced the transportation sector to focus on the customer,” Lewis writes. 

For consumers, this includes a network that is smarter, faster, safer, and most importantly convenient. 

On a national level, the U.S. Department of Transportation has developed a program aimed at using computers and 
communication infrastructure to do just that. Known as Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS), traffic engineers have utilized 
electronics to make improvements to a variety of transportation infrastructure such as traffic signals (including vehicle presence 
detection and transit signal priority), road weather information systems, and dynamic messaging signs. 

In addition, changes to vehicle technology – both from the public and private sector – have led to the very real possibility of the 
presence of connected and automated vehicles (CAVs) on our roadways. Changes are already being felt in the industry with the 
growing interest in electric vehicles and the increasing number of electric vehicle charging stations across the Saint Cloud 
metro. 

20

                                                      Attachment G2

https://tinyurl.com/3zdb2xac
https://tinyurl.com/3zdb2xac


 

 
     

x 

 
Figure X.9: Differences between connected and automated vehicles. 

Technological improvements are not going away. As such, close attention to the latest advancements in transportation 
technology will only help set our region up for future success in an ever-changing world. 

What Does the Public Think? 
The following is a representative sample of the comments received during the initial public input period as they pertain to the 
Technological Advancements Visioning Theme. 

• “Infrastructure for electric vehicles has to be expanded with solar or carbon neutral options.” 
• “Better infrastructure for electric cars so they can become more common.” 
• “I look forward to a day when a little electric vehicle self-driving, will come to my door and bring me where I need to 

go.” 
• “Our transportation system is in sort of transition as we work to modernize and adapt it to address the needs of all 

users. We need to be strategic in how, where, and when we make these improvements.” 
• “Prepare for autonomous transportation – autonomous taxi service.” 

21

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

• “I think the stoplights need to be improved as far as intelligence/timing. This is especially true on Second Street as 
well as Highway 15 (Division too, though maybe not as badly). Driving through cities like Omaha and Sioux Falls where I 
have lived before, I notice I hit green on a lot more lights because the lights seem to be working in conjunction with 
each other so you rarely need to stop when driving on a main road. This is a major issue here, because driving down 
Second Street, I hit red on every light pretty often. It doesn’t have to be this way if money was invested in more 
intelligent stoplights/intersections.” 

• “The stop light system is severely outdated. Metro wide it should be updated with better more dynamic systems with 
smart AI rather than timing and some sensors. Surveys should be done automatically and consistently ensure traffic 
timing is accounted properly.” 

• “Automated vehicles would be beneficial if affordable.” 

 

Figure X.10: University of Minnesota CAV vehicle. 
Photo courtesy of Saint Cloud APO. 

How to Address this Vision 
In order to make progress toward achieving this visionary statement, the APO is committed to the following objectives and 
strategies: 

22

                                                      Attachment G2



 

 
     

x 

1. Promote the development and deployment of innovative transportation technology improvements. 
a. APO staff will continue to monitor the development and likely impacts of driverless vehicles. 
b. The APO will support, to the extent possible, the expansion of dynamic traffic signals and the active management 

of them to improve system efficiency and operation. 
c. APO staff and jurisdictional members will, to the extent possible, promote alternative fuel technology, including 

but not limited to, electric vehicle infrastructure. 

Measuring Progress 
Performance measures provide useful feedback on how the APO is doing in terms of achieving its desired vision/goals. 
Performance management ensures the most efficient investment of transportation funds by increasing accountability, providing 
transparency, and linking investment decisions to key outcomes. 

The following is a list of performance measures the APO will utilize to document progress toward the Technological 
Advancements Visionary Statement. 

• Annual Number of Registered Vehicles Using Alternative Fuels. 

Next Steps 

As we conclude this portion of the transportation planning process, we begin the transition from understanding current 
conditions to planning for our future needs.  

As we turn our attention to 2050, we will be considering the following: 

• What is our system forecasted to look like in 2050? 
• Approximately how much money can we reasonably expect there to be to address our future problems? 
• What sorts of improvements can we make to the system to help us achieve our goals? 
• What’s next for our region’s transportation system? 

In short, we will be considering the implementation of transportation infrastructure projects and/or future planning efforts that 
will guide us to our desired future. Using the objectives and strategies identified in this chapter, the implementation of projects, 
plans, and/or policies outlined in the remaining sections of the plan will help us work toward achieving our visions/goals. What 
we want our end destination to look like is clear – how we will carry out the work to get us there will be the topic for the 
remainder of this plan. 

23

                                                      Attachment G2



Attachment H 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

 

 
1040 County Road 4, Saint Cloud, MN 56303-0643 

T. 320.252.7568 F. 320.252.6557 

 

TO:   Saint Cloud APO Policy Board  
FROM:  Brian Gibson, Executive Director 
RE:  Debrief Washington DC Trip 
DATE:  November 3, 2023 
 

From October 16-19, I traveled to Washington, DC along with Commissioners 
Perske and Gapinski to meet with representatives of our Congressional delegation 
and brief them on our regional transportation priorities. 

The Commissioners wanted a chance to debrief with the rest of the Policy Board. 

At your November 9th meeting, the Commissioners will discuss the trip, what they 
learned, and what they see as our next steps toward accomplishing those regional 
goals. 

 

Suggested Action: None, informational only.  

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


Attachment I 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

 

 

 
1040 County Road 4, Saint Cloud, MN 56303-0643 

T. 320.252.7568 F. 320.252.6557 

 

TO:   Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization Policy Board 
FROM:  Alex McKenzie, Associate Planner 
RE:  Safe Routes to School 
DATE:  Oct. 31, 2023 
 

Safe Routes to School (SRTS) is an effort to improve walking and bicycling conditions for 
youth and to encourage more active lifestyles. SRTS programs improve safety, reduce 
traffic, and improve air quality near schools through a multidisciplinary approach structured 
around the 6 E’s; (equity, engagement, engineering, education, encouragement, and 
evaluation.) These plans consider many factors, such as student demographics, the 
community in context, and existing infrastructure, to develop recommendations to make 
walking, biking, and rolling safe and comfortable for all students.  

APO staff work with community partners to develop these plans, including school district 
staff, school principals and administrators, public health officials, Metro Bus, law 
enforcement, city staff, and MnDOT staff.  

Since 2019, the APO, along with its community partners, completed SRTS Plans for all Saint 
Cloud School District ISD 742 elementary and middle schools within the planning area 
(Discovery, Kennedy, Madison, Oak Hill, Talahi, Lincoln, Westwood, and North and South 
Junior High) along with an overall district plan. There is also a plan for the Sartell-Saint 
Stephen School District ISD 748 for Pine Meadow Primary and Sartell Middle School from 
2014. The plans can be found on the APO’s website. 

In the Spring of 2023, the APO was awarded a planning assistance grant to collaborate with 
a consultant to create an SRTS Plan for the Sauk Rapids-Rice School District ISD 47 for 
Pleasantview Elementary, Mississippi Heights Elementary, and the Sauk Rapids-Rice Middle 
School. The plan is currently in the initial data-gathering phase and is scheduled to be 
completed by the end of the 2023-2024 school year.  

Once plans are complete, your agency staff can apply for grants to help build infrastructure 
projects identified in the plan. A few common grant sources include the Transportation 
Alternatives, SRTS Infrastructure Grant, and Active Transportation (AT) Grant.  

 

Suggested Action: None, informational only. 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org
https://stcloudapo.org/documents-resources/safe-routes-to-school/

	0 - PB Agenda November 2023
	AGENDA
	APO Policy Board Meeting


	A - October 12 2023 PB Minutes Final
	B1 - Actual October 2023 Disbursements
	B2 - Proposed November 2023 Disbursements -
	B3 - Proposed December 2023 Disbursements
	C - TAC Meeting Staff Report memo
	D - ATP-3 Staff Report memo
	E - 3rd Quarter Budget to Actual
	F1 - HSIP memo
	F2 - Sherco_HSIPApplication_St.CloudAPO_1-13-23 (1)
	1. Contact Information Details
	2. Funding Details
	3. Project Description
	4. Selection Criteria
	5. Crash Data for Reactive Projects ONLY: Jan. 1, 2018 through Dec. 31, 2022
	6. OPTIONAL: Additional Notes
	7. Submission Information

	F3 - 2025-2028 HSIP Letter of Recommendation PROACTIVE projects
	G1 -Looking Ahead 2050 Goals_Objectives
	G2 - 11022023 Goals and Objectives Draft Text
	Introduction
	Guiding our Goals at the National and State Level
	MnDOT Policy Guidance

	The Looking Ahead 2050 Visioning Process
	System and Environmental Stewardship
	What Does the Public Think?
	How to Address This Vision
	Measuring Progress

	Multimodal Connections
	What Does the Public Think?
	How to Address this Vision
	Measuring Progress

	Congestion Management
	What Does the Public Think?
	How to Address this Vision
	Measuring Progress

	Transportation Safety
	What Does the Public Think?
	How to Address this Vision
	Measuring Progress

	Interregional Connections
	What Does the Public Think?
	How to Address this Vision
	Measuring Progress

	Technological Advancements
	What Does the Public Think?
	How to Address this Vision
	Measuring Progress


	Next Steps

	H - Washington Debrief Cover Memo
	I - Safe Routes to School



